DATE:
LOCATION:

TIME:

11:30-11:40
11:40-11:50
11:50-12:05
12:05-12:15
12:15-12:30

12:30-12:50
12:50-1:45

1:45-1:55

1:55-2:30

Cape Light Compact
Governing Board and Executive Committee Meeting

April 12,2017

Innovation Reom, Open Cape Building

3195 Main Street, Bamnstable County Complex
11:30 a.m. - 2:00 p.m.

AGENDA

Public Comment
Approval of Minutes
Treasurer’s Report, Potential Vote to Ratify Treasurer’s Approval of Contracts
Chairman’s Report, Barnstable County Proposed Ordinance 17-04
Energy Efficiency Program Updates
. Commercial & Industrial Program, Margaret Song
2. April 15™-May 31%, Refrigerator Recycling Enhanced Rebate Offer
Meeting Break
Administrator’s Report
1. MTM filed at the Depariment of Public Utilities
2. Request to Reschedule May 10 Compact Board Meeting
3. Operating Budget
4. Joint Powers Entity Update:
a. Review/Discuss and Potential Vote on Transition Plan and Establish
and Potentially Vote on Transition Budget (April-June)
b. Potential Vote to Revoke March 3, 2017 Supplemental Budget
Request
c. Vote on moving Operational Transfer Date to July 1, 2017
d. Office Space RFP Results
e. Status of Comptroller Position
Board Member Update (Reserved for Updates on Member Activities the Chair
Did Not Reasonably Anticipate Would be Discussed — No Voting)
Open Session Vote on entry into Executive Session pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A
§§21(a)(3) to discuss matters below, not to return to open session:
1. Regulatory litigation strategy. DPU 17-05, 2017 Eversource Rate Case.
Potential vote on budget and strategy
2. Regulatory litigation strategy. DPU 15-122, Eversource Grid Modemization
Plan
3. Regulatory litigation strategy. DPU 16-169, National Grid and Compact
dispute regarding National Grid Agreement for Natural Gas Heated Homes






Draft Minutes subject to correction. addition and Committee Board Approval
Cape Light Compact
Governing Board and Executive Committee
Open Session Meeting Minutes
Friday, March 3, 2017

The Cape Light Compact Governing Board and Executive Committee met on Friday, March 3, 2017, in the
Innovation Room, Open Cape Building, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630
at 9:00 a.m.

PRESENT WERE: SENT WERE:

1. Joyce Flynn, Chair, Yarmouth 17. Michael Hebert, Aquinnah

2. Robert Schofield, Vice-Chair, Bourne 18, Tisbury - Vacant

3. Peter Cocolis, Treasurer, Chatham 19. Ronald Zweig, Secretary, Falmouth
4. Richard Toole, Member at Large, Oak Bluffs - Phone 20. Tim Carroll, Chilmark

5. Fred Fenlon, Eastham 21. Leo Cakounes, Barnstable County
6. Valene Bell, Harwich 22. Rob Hannemann, Duke’s County

7. Thomas Donegan, Provincetown — by phone.

8. Richard Elkin, Wellfleet

9. Sue Hruby, West Tisbury - by phone.
10. Martin Culik, Orleans

11. David Anthony, Barnstable

12. Andrew Gottlieb, Mashpee

13. Colin Odell, Brewster

14. Joshua Peters, Sandwich

15. Brad Crowell, Dennis

16. Joseph Buteau, Truro

Members physically present: 13
Members present by phone: 3

LEGAL COUNSEL
Jeff Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, PC

STAFF PRESENT

Maggie Downey, Administrator

Austin Brandt, Power Supply Planner

Matt Dudley, Large Commercial and Industrial Analyst
Briana Kane, Planning and Evaluation Manager
Lindsay Henderson, Analyst

Jacob Wright, Special Projects Coordinator

PUBLIC PRESENT
Ron Beatty, Bamstable County Commissioner

m

Clage Lot Cor poicr £caiive Consnd e & Enaiiees Boga?
Ve 3 2007 Weerine Mkt



] i

Draft Minutes subject o correction, addition and Committee Board Approval

Chr. Flynn opened the meeting at 9:09 AM as a meeting of the Executive Commiittee only, due to the lack of a
physical quorum.

2016-2018 ENERGY EFFICIENCY PLAN, REQUEST FOR A MID TERM MODIFICATION: BEHAVIOR INITIATIVE

AND DEMAND RESPONSE OFFERING

Austin Brandt provided a presentation on the planned offering overview for the the 2016-2018 Plan; he noted
that he gave a similar presentation to the Exccutive Committee of the Energy Efficiency Advisory Council on
March 1%

Andy Gottlieb arrived at 9:12 AM.

Cape Light Compact is proposing to expand its Demand Response offering to include thermal storage for small
and medium commercial and industrial customers. The goal is to shift funds from the Behavior Initiative
Program, becausc a recent evaluation states that it is not cost effective, to the Demand Response Demo
Offering. Austin also discussed the concept of Ice Bears, explaining the technology will allow a shift in load to
off peak hours without impairing customer comfort.

Brad Crowell arrived at 9:21 AM.

Austin Brandt explained that there may be grid-facing bencfits, but it's an issue of quantifying the benefits in a
way where it's accounted for. Matt Dudley, Cape Light Compact’s Large Commercial & Industrial staffperson,
i1s going to work with Austin to identify potential sites that may benelfit from the tecchnology. Austin Brandt
explained that the change in budget would require a Midterm Modification as ordered by the Department of
Public Utilities, with a net change in the budget of $605,000. By contrast, Eversource has filed a Midterm
Modification valued at over 21 million dollars related to demand response.

Joyce Flyan acknowledged now that there was a physical quorum of the full board and convened the Goveming
Board. Chr. Flynn acknowledged Richard Toole, Sue Hruby, Tom Donegan were participating remotely due to
geographic distance. Full Governing Board - 9:55AM.

Martin Culik moved that the board vote to support the submission of a Mid-Term Modification request, and a
revised Energy Efficiency Surcharge filing to the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary and appropriate to
implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to implement
this vote. Robert Schoficld seconded, and voted by roll call as follows:

. David Anthony — Barnstable yes 11. Thomas Donegan - Provincetown  yes
2. R. Schofield - Bourne yes 12. Joshua Peters — Sandwich yes
3. Colin Odell - Brewster yes 13. Joseph Buteau — Truro yes
4. Peter Cocolis — Chatham yes 14. Richard Elkin — Wellfleet yes
5. Brad Crowell — Dennis yes 15. Sue Hruby — West Tisbury yes
6. Fred Fenlon — Eastham yes 16. Joyce Flynn — Yarmouth yes
7. Andrew Gottlieb — Mashpee yes

8. Valenie Bell -~ Harwich yes

e

Coprr Ll ot Excenring Lommnidog o Qg i e Bogie?
Wenek 32007 Vo Wi s



Draft Minutes subject o correction. addition and Commitiee Board Approsal
9. Richard Toole ~ Oak Bluffs yes
10. Martin Culik — Orleans yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (16-0-0)

UPDATE ON JOINT POWERS ENTITY AND JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

Maggie Downey explained that the Joint Powers Entity was formed by Board of Selectmen votes in the towns
of Provincetown and Brewster, pending receipt of executed documents. A meeting will be necessary to organize
as a Joint Powers Entity, and to authorize several administrative actions (appoint an administrator, apply for a
tax ID etc...),. She requested a subcommittee of the Compact Board be appointed at the next Governing Board
meeting to work in conjunction with the Joint Powers Entity board of directors (composed of representatives of
those towns that have already joined) during this transition process.

Ron Bealty inquired aboul the prospect of Barnstable County joining, and Maggie Downey noted that because
the Compact engages in regional energy policy, it may be wise to have a representative from Bamstable and
Dukes County as members to participate in regional energy discussions.

Maggie Downey explained that the auditor suggested that we have all Compact towns on board by June 30.

Maggie Downey stated that the Request For Proposals for office space was published on March 1%. She also
stated that the general feeling is that a CPA Firm may be best for the Treasurer function. Staff and Governing
Board members Board discussed developing a transition plan between the Cape Light Compact Governing
Board and the Joint Powers Entity to identify tasks, roles and responsibilities.

Valerie Bell left at 10:31 AM.

Richard Elkin, Martin Culik, Peter Cocolis, and Joyce Flynn all volunteered to be on the subcommittee when it
is more formally constituted.

A sense of the board was that the Compact Board should meet before the first meeting of the Joint Powers
Entity Board of Directors.

CONSIDERATION OF MEETING MINUTES — SKIPPED.
The Board considered the February 11, 2017 Meeting Minutes. Robert Schofield moved the board to accept the
amended minutes, seconded by M. Culik and voted by roll call as follows:

l. David Anthony — Bamstable yes 10. Thomas Donegan — Provincetown  yes
2. R. Schofield - Bourne yes 11. Joshua Peters — Sandwich yes
3. Colin Odell - Brewster yes 12. Joseph Buteau — Truro yes
4. Peter Cocolis — Chatham abs 13. Richard Elkin — Wellfleet yes
5. Brad Crowell - Dennis yes 14. Sue Hruby — West Tisbury abs
6. Fred Fenlon — Eastham yes 15. Joyce Flynn ~ Yarmouth yes
7. Andrew Gottlieb — Mashpee abs
8. Richard Toole — Oak Biuffs abs
9. Martin Culik — Orleans yes

m

Cigne Lagar Congact Eacoutiae G vl Tr i B
Voo 3020007 Mo onine Yanges



Dratt Minutes subjeet to correction, addivon and Committee Board Approval

Motion carried in the affirmative (12-0-4)

CUAIRMAN'S REPORT

Joyce explained that it's very important for the board to be present regularly at their Selectmen/Council
meetings to answer even casual questions, and to look into alternates for all the towns to ensure proper coverage
as we transition to the Joint Powers Entity, and extended congratulations to everyone who's been working on

getting the Joint Powers Entity started.

TREASURER’S REPORT

Peter Cocolis explained the contract process briefly and how certain items do not have a specified budget due to
savings. Colin Odell recused himsell from the discussion due to his affiliation with ICF, which is a vendor

cantractor.

Peter Cacolis moved the board to vote to vatify the actions of the Compact Treasurer relative to Compact
Contracts from January 11, 2017 through February 28, 2017.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary and appropriate to
implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to implement
this vote. Robert Schoficld seconded, and voted by roll call as follows:

1. David Anthony — Barnstable yes 10. Thomas Donegan — Provincetown  yes
2. R. Schoficld - Bourne yes 11. Joshua Peters — Sandwich yes
3. Colin Odell - Brewster abs 12. Joseph Buteau — Truro yes
4. Peter Cocolis — Chatham yes 13. Richard Elkin — Wellfleet yes
5. Brad Crowell - Dennis yes 14. Sue Hruby — West Tisbury yes
6. Fred Fenlon — Eastham yes 15. Joyce Flynn — Yarmouth yes
7. Andrew Gottlieb — Mashpee yes
8. Richard Toole — Oak Bluffs yes
9. Martin Culik - Orleans yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-1)

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET REQUEST — OPERATING FUND
L

TSI TLR T BT O A P vt LaHEna R g o\ dpimy paargrr B!

Wpcode 32 2008 T Mo \foa




Drvaft Minutes subject w correction. addition and Committee Board Approval

Maggic Downey proposed a supplemental budget for office space, potential renovation, creation of a new staff’
position (Comptroller), and purchase of financial software. The proposed budgeted amount would total

$68,775.00.

Colin Odell proposed an amendment to increase the supplemental budget request from $68,775.00 to
$75,000.00, the $6,225.00 difference going into the IT account.

Robert Schofield moved to appropriate an additional $75,000.00 for the Cape Light Compact FY17 Operating
Budget. The revised total FY17 operating budget is $956,272.23.

The Compuct Administrator is authorized and divected to take all actions necessary and appropriate to
implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to implement
this vote. Martin Culik seconded, and voted by roll call as follows:

1. David Anthony — Barnstable yes 10. Thomas Donegan — Provincetown  yes
2. R. Schofield - Bourne yes 11. Joshua Peters — Sandwich yes
3. Colin Odell — Brewster yes 12. Joseph Buteau — Truro yes
4. Peter Cocolis — Chatham yes 13. Richard Elkin - Wellfleet yes
5. Brad Crowell — Dennis yes 14. Sue Hruby — West Tisbury yes
6. Fred Fenlon — Eastham yes 15. Joyce Flynn - Yarmouth yes
7. Andrew Gottlieb — Mashpee yes
8. Richard Toole — Qak Biuffs yes
9. Martin Culik — Orleans yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

BOARD MEMBER UPDATE

Colin Odell suggested that we stop using the term ratepayers, and instead refer to our customers as such.

David Anthony stated that trying to explain the statute regarding the Joint Powers Entity is very complicated.
He stated that the FAQ we already have may need to be frequently updated and to reflect continuing
conversations we’ve had about the transition and plans for implementation of the Joint Powers Entity.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Robert Schofield moved we enter into Executive Session, pursuant to MGL Chapter 304 §21(a) 3 to discuss
strategy with respect (o pending regulatory litigation relative to National Grid and the Cape Light Compact and
the National Grid Agreement for Natwwral Gas Heated Homes (DPU 16-169), and pending regulatory litigation
strategy regarding the 2017 Eversource rate case (DPU 17-05).

_——— e ———

Caga e Carpacr Evcoive Guimaiitey & Gy iing B 5
Weedr & 2005 gt Wirties



v

Dralt Minutes subject 1o correction. addition and Committee Board Approval
Joyce Flynn as Compact Chair declared that than open session may have a detrimental effect on the Cape Light
Compact’s litigating position. The board would not return to Open Session at the conclusion of Executive

Session,

Martin Culik moved to « vote, Robert Schoficld seconded, and voted by rofl call as follows:

I. David Anthony - Barnstable yes 10, Thomas Donegan - Provincetown  yes
2. R. Schofield - Bourne yes 11. Joshua Peters — Sandwich yes
3. Colin Odell — Brewster yes 12. Joseph Buteau — Truro yes
4. Peter Cocolis — Chatham yes 13. Richard Elkin — Wellfleet yes
5. Brad Crowell - Dennis yes 14, Suc Hruby — West Tisbury yes
6. Fred Fenlon — Eastham yes 15. Joyce Flynn - Yarmouth yes
7. Andrew Gottlieb — Mashpee yes
8. Richard Toole -~ Oak Bluffs yes
9. Martin Culik — Orleans yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0)

Respectfully submitted,
Jacob Wright

LIST OF DOCUMENTS & EXHIBITS
* Meeting Notice/Agenda
» February 11, 2017 Meeting Minutes — Draft
¢ Cape Light Compact Mid-Term Modification Presentation
¢ Vendor Contract Tracker
e 8074 CLC Operating Fund Budget dated 3/2/2017
* Assembly of Delegates Proposed Ordinance 17-04




~ Agenda Action Request
Cape Light Compact
Meeting Date: 4/12/17

—— =
Ratify Actions of Treasurer

Aguinnah
Barnstable REQUESTED BY: Peter Cocolis
Barnstable -

Z':fn‘:y Proposed Motion(s)

Bourne . . .

I move the Board vote to ratify the actions of the Compact Treasurer relative to Compact

Brewster contracts from March 3, 2017 through April 12, 2017.

Chatham

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
p y
Chilmark, appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be

necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.
Dennis

Dukes
County

Additional Information
Eastham

¢ This motion is consistent with the Board’s March 11, 2015 vote to establish a

Edgartown .
contract review process

Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orleans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury

Truro

Wellfleet Record of Board Action
West Tisbury Motion by: | Second by: # Aye | #Nay | # Abstain Disposition
| |

Yarmouth







At £9-
(A

BARNSTABLE COUNTY
In the Year Two Thousand and Seventeen

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 17- 0")‘

WHEREAS, the Barnstable County Home Rule Charter requires that all contracts be presented to
the Assembly of Delegates for approval by the Assembly before they are signed by the Board of
Regional Commissioners. [See: Charter, §§ 2-8 (b), and §§ 3-3 (g)]; and

WHEREAS, the Barnstable County Home Rule Charter requires that all decisions to “establish,
alter or abolish any departient, office or agency ...” be undertaken only by ordinance approved
by the Assembly of Delegates. [See: Charter §§ 2-8 (d) (i)]; and ~—

Whereas, the Assembly of Delegates has not by ordinance or otherwise participated in, nor have
they approved the terms of the contract for “Termination and Transition” of the Capc nght
Compact (Compact); and

WHEREAS, beginning in 1997, Barnstable County provided all start up funds, including
continuing financial support and assistance and other direct funding, as well as personnel,
equipment, office space, technology in the form of telecommunications and computer
equipment, and other goods and services, tanglble and intangible, from the outset of the Compact
to the present; and

WHEREAS, acoording to the “termination agreement” put forward by withdrawing members,
the withdrawing members seek to claim all assets generated by the intergovernmental entity
which funds do not belong to individual withdrawing towns but rather belong to the rate payers,
lhe taxpayers of Barnstable County and Bamstable County; and

WHEREAS, the Bamstable County Commissioners have entered into an agreement for the
withdrawal of members (i.e. cities and towns of Barnstable County) of the intergovernmental
entity known as Cape Light Compact without any accounting or identification of asscts; and

WHEREAS, the proposed conveyance of all of the assets held by Barnstable County as the fiscal
agent for the intergovernmental entity known as Cape Light Compact is an unlawful and ultra
vires conveyance which is not authorized by M.G.L. c. 40 Section 4A or any other authority; and

WHEREAS, Barnstable County has at all material times been the fiscal agent for the entity
known as Cape Light Compact and has at all material times been responsible for the books and
records of said entity and for the proper safeguarding of its assets; and

WHEREAS, the Barnstable County Commissioners and the County Administrator appear to
have negotiated an agreement, without any public hearing, notice to ratepayers, accounting or
other financial disclosure, that conveys all assets used by the Compact to it, without any
reimbursement for personnel, benefits (such as health insurance and retirement), lease of county
space, technological equipment and supplies, even including automobiles, provided to the
Compact by Barnstable County; and




WHEREAS, the contract for “termination” is uitra vives, that is, beyond the authority of the
Bamstable County Commissioners and the County Administrator, and should be held to be void
ab initie, unenforceable from the beginning, negotiated as it was without approval of or
participation by the Assembly and as it conveys away assets purchased with Barnstable County,
taxpayer and rafepayer funds and never rcimbursed; and

WHEREAS, the County of Barristable as fiscal agenl al all material times has a fiduciary duty
under the intergovernmental agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, Bamstable County hercby ordains, effective immediately,

1. The Cape Light Compact, and the Bamstable County employees involved in its operation and
all other employees of other entities working pursuant to the existing inter municipal agreement
or otherwise having access to the offices, equipment, and furnishings used for the work of the
Compact are directed and prohibited from removing any property of any kind from the premises
at Barnstable County complex;

2 Anaudit will be commenced under the control of auditors chosen by the Assembly with
consultation with the Barnstable County Commissioners to determine, inter alia, the amount of
the county investment from the inception of Cape Light to the present and the amount of money
owed the county; as part of that review, the Compact and its employees and participating (now
departing) members shall agree to reopen the “termination agreement” to cnsure that the county
is fairly and adequately compensated for its investment, to the present,

3. The auditors examining the books and records of the Compact shall be charged with
identifying (a) how much money and property, including intellectual property was used by the
Compact without payment, (b) which member(s) benefitted, and (¢) how much is owed to the
Barnstable County;

4. Bamstable County shall appropriate such funds as may be nccessary to hire counsel to
oversce the investigation of the finances of Cape Light Compact from its inception to the present,
to ensure the safety of rate payer and county funds during the course of the dissolution of the
entity known as Cape Light Compact, and to ensure the proper arrangements for reimbursement
of funds owed to the County and/or to the ratepayers.

Dated March 1, 2017

Submitted by: : W |
Truro Delcgate Deborah L. McCutcheon, W

Wellfleet Delegate, Lilli-Ann Green ﬁ(b . %m ,«&um




t

Provincetown Delegale, Brian O’Malley, MD M aéd.‘
e - N

Orleans Delegate, Christopher W. Kanaga 4 %@ o

Chatham Delegate, Ronald Bergstrom _%L

Eastham Delegate, Edward F. Atwood

Sandwich Delegate, James Killion







Martha’s Vineyard Regional High
School District Lighting Project 2017

Scope of the Project
Retrofit of 1945 fixtures and lamps (mostly fluorescent technology) with new LED

replacements - includes new ballasts for those that need them. The Performing Arts
Center is not included in this proposal.

Cape Light [t}
Compact JL

Inclusion of vending misers on two existing refrigerated beverage machines

Cost of the Project
Estimated cost of the materials and labor: $250,234

Direct Cost from the School District

$0 co-pay. These funds are derived from the efficiency funds, and the Cape Light Compact
Governing Board has approved a 100% incentive for municipalities for cost-effective
measures.

Delivery (Rate 32-RESIDENTIAL NONHEAT - ANNUAL)

Customer Charge $3.73
Distribution Charge 362 kWh X .06093 $22.06
Transition Charge 362 kWh X .00436 $1.58
Transmission Charge 362 kWh X .02298 $8.32
Renewable Energy Charge 362 kWh X .00050 $0.18
Energy Conservation Charge 362 kWh X .02301 $8.33

Subtotal Delivery Services

Savings for the Project
Estimated savings: 284,663 kWh, or $48,393 per year (using $0.17/kWh)

Expected Timing

Work to begin around July 1 (subject to all agreements in place and all materials available
for shipment).

Expected Partners
There are still agreements that need to finalized, but it is our hope that an island-based

electrician will be able to labor under a relationship with the Compact's competitively
procured vendor.






BCK

=s BCK LAW, P.C.

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The firm has attorneys also odmitted 271 Waver.ey Oaxs Road, Sure 203 Fazsmir: 802.419.8283
lo praclice in District of Columbia, WaitHam, MassacHussns 02452 E-Mai: bekboston@bek com
ldako, New York ond Vermon! 617244 9500 Wessite: www bck.com

March 31, 2017

ViA ELECTRONIC MAIL
ORIGINAL BY HAND DELIVERY

Mark D. Marini, Secretary
Department of Public Utilities
One South Station, 5th Floor
Boston, MA 02110

Re:  Petition of Cape Light Compact for an Advisory Ruling Pursuant to G.L. ¢. 304,
§8and 220 CM.R. §§2.02 and 2.08

Dear Secretary Marini:

On behalf of the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact™), enclosed for filing please find a
petition for an advisory ruling to clarify that the Compact does not need to file a revised
aggregation plan if it undergoes an internal reorganization that transfers the Compact's
operations from an inter-governmental organization under G.L. c. 40, §4A to a joint powers
entity under G.L. c. 40, §4A1/2,

Also enclosed are a Notice of Appearance and a check in the amount of $100.00 to cover
the filing fee.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. If you require further information or have
any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

%4.7 A7/

Audrey A. Eidelman

AAE/drb

Enclosures

cc:  Kevin F. Penders, Esq., General Counsel (via email only)

Margaret T. Downey, Cape Light Comgact Administrator (via first class mail)

VErmonT OFFICE: MOUNTaIN STaTEs QFFiCE:
P.O. Box 205 PO. Box 1527
Woodstock, Vermont 05091 Ketchum, Idoho 83340
Telephane. 802.457 9050 Telephone: 208.727 9734
Facsimile: 802 419.8283 Facsimile 802.419.8283

E-Mail bekvi@bek com E-Mail: bekidaho@bck com



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Petition of the Towns of Aquinnah, Barnstable,
Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis,
Edgartown, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich,
Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown,
Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, West Tisbury, Wellfleet,
and Yarmouth, acting together as the Cape Light
Compact for an Advisory Ruling Regarding

G.L.c. 164, §134(a)

DP.U.17-__

PETITION FOR AN ADVISORY RULING
BY THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

L INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, §8 and 220 C.M.R., §§2.02 and 2.08, the towns of Aquinnah,
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Chilmark, Dennis, Edgartown, Eastham, Falmouth,
Hanwich, Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown, Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, West
Tisbury, Wellfleet, and Yarmouth, and the counties of Barnstable and Dukes, acting together as
the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact”), hereby request that the Department of Public Utilities
(the “DPU” or the “Department”) issue an advisory ruling to clarify that the Compact does not
need to file a revised aggregation plan if it undergoes an internal reorganization that transfers the
Compact’s operations from an inter-governmental organization under G.L. c. 40, §4A to a joint
powers entity under G.L. c. 40, §4A1/2 (the “Cape Light Compact JPE").

Solely for the purposes of seeking this advisory ruling, the Compact assumes that: (1) all

of the individual municipal members of the Compact that are currently authorized to administer



the Compact’s aggregation plan approved in its original form in D.T.E. 00-47 and in its revised
and updated form in D.P.U. 14-69 (the “Aggregation Plan") elect to join the Cape Light Compact
JPE; (2) the organizational structure of the Compact remains substantially similar to that outlined
in D.P.U. 14-69; (3) the operations of the Compact remain substantially similar to those outlined
in D.P.U. 14-69; (4) all contracts of the Compact are assigned to the Cape Light Compact JPE,
including, but not limited 1o, any retail electric supply agreements and energy efficiency program
vendor agreements; and (5) the Cape Light Compact JPE will administer the Cape Light

Compact Energy Efficiency Plan approved by the Department in D.P.U. 15-166.

IL FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. Compact Organization and Purpose.

The Compact is a governmental aggregator under G.L. c. 164, §134 (“Section 134”) and
consists of the 21 towns in Barnstable and Dukes Counties, as listed above, as well as the two
counties themselves. It was originally formed in 1997 and is organized through a formal Inter-
Governmental Agreement signed by all of the towns, as well as Barnstable and Dukes counties,
pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, as amended from time to time by the Compact Governing Board
(the “lGA™). The IGA was most recently updated in November 2015 and is enclosed as
Attachment A. The Compact maintains a business office at the Barnstable County Complex,
3195 Main Street, Open Cape Building, Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630, but will be relocating
its office on or about July 1, 2017.

In April 2000, the Compact entered into an Administrative Services Agreement with one
of its members, Barnstable County (the “County”), to document the provision of certain

administrative and fiscal management services to be provided by the County. Since that time,

e



the County provided these services and has acted as the employer of record for Compact staff.
As discussed in Section 1I(E), fnfia, the County’s provisions of fiscal and administrative services
to the Compact will terminate on june 30, 2017.

The purposes of the Compact include, among other things: (1) to provide the basis for
aggregation of all consumers on a non-discriminatory basis; (2) to negotiate the best terms and
conditions for electricity supply and transparent pricing; (3) to utilize and encourage renewable
energy development to the extent practicable through contract provisions, demonstration projects
and state mandated system benefit charges for renewable energy; and (4) to administer an energy
efficiency plan that advances consumer awareness and the adoption of a wide variety of cnergy
efficiency measures. IGA, Article L.

B. The Compact’s Power Supply Program,

The Compact obtained approval [or its original Aggregation Plan in D.T.E. 00-47
(August 10, 2000). The Department issued a separate order, D.T.E. 00-47-A (December 8,
2000} regarding the opt-out notices to be sent to Compact customers. In 2001, the Department
approved the Compact’s plan to offer a default power supply pilot program. D.T.E. 01-63
(October 23, 2001, March 22, 2002). The Compact operated a default power supply pilot
program until 2005, when the Compact commenced an all-requirements power supply program
under a form of competitive electric supply agreement approved by the Depariment in D.T.E. 04-
32 (May 4, 2004). The Compact has continuously operated its all-requirements power supply
program since March 1, 2005, when the standard offer service rate in the Commonwealth

expired.



C. The Compact’s Energy Efficiency Program.
In D.T.E. 00-47-C (April 6, 2001)!, the Department determined that the Compact’s

energy cfficiency plan was consistent with state energy efficiency goals and authorized the
Compact to receive and expend moneys from the demand-side management systems benefits
charges collected by the local electric distribution company. Since 2001, the Compact has
implemented an energy efficiency plan in accordance with G.L. c. 164, §134(b) and, since 2008,
G.L.c. 25A, §§19, 21. The Compact’s current 2016-2018 statewide energy efficiency plan was
approved by the Department in D.P.U. 15-166 (January 28, 2016).

D. The Compact’s Revised Aggregation Plan.

On August 27, 2013, the Department issued a letter to the Compact requesting that the
Compact review its Aggregation Plan specifically to: (1) determine whether the Compact should
file a revised Aggregation Plan to reflect current structure and operations; (2} consider removing
obsolete references; and (3) to comply with applicable laws, regulations and Department
precedent, as well as any directives in the Department’s decision in D.P.U. 12-124, the City of
Lowell’s Petition for Approval of Municipal Aggregation Plan. On April 3, 2014, the Compact
filed its revised and updated Aggregation Plan for review and approval by the Department,
which the Department docketed as D.P.U. 14-69.

In early May 2015, the Department issued an order approving the Compact’s revised and
updated Aggregation Plan (the “Order”) and asked the Compact to file a revised updated
Aggregation Plan consistent with the Department’s Order. Cape Light Compact, D.P.U. 14-69
(May I, 2015). Later that month, the Department approved the Compact’s final revised updated
Aggregation Plan. Cape Light Compact, D.P.U. 14-69-A (May 18, 2015). The Compact’s

current Aggregation Plan is enclosed as Attachment B.

' Due to an administrative errar, there is no docket numbered D.T.E. 00-47-B.

4



E. The Compact’s Transition to a New Fiscal Agent and Plan for Internal
Rcorganization.

In 2016, the County notified the Compact that it no longer wished to provide fiscal and
administrative services to the Compact under the existing Administrative Services Agreement.
The County cxpressed specific concerns about liability for Compact contracts and for certain
employment benefits associated with acting as the employer of record for the Compact’s staff.
The Compact and the County engaged in discussions over the course of 2016 to address the
County’s concerns and considered entering into an amended Administrative Services Agreement.
The County and the Compact were unable to reach agreement and thereforc mutually clected to
terminate the County’s provision of administrative and fiscal services so that the Compact could
transition to a new service provider. In December 2016, the County and the Compact entered
into a Termination and Transition Agreement that will expire at the end of the current fiscal year
{(June 30, 2017). By its terms, this agreement terminated the Administrative Services Agreement
between the County and the Compact.

During 2016, the Legislature considered and enacted Chapter 218 of the Acts of 2016, An
Act Modernizing Municipa! Finance and Government (the “Act”). Section 20 of the Act
established a new section of the general laws authorizing joint powers entities, G.L. c. 40, §4A'%:
(the “Joint Powers Statute™). Through adoption and execution of a joint powers agreement
("JPA™), governmental units may create a separate “Joint Powers Entity” which is a body politic
and corporate. The Joint Powers Statute authorizes the Joint Powers Entity to, among other
things, sue and be sued, execute contracts, receive and expend funds, borrow money and act as a
public employer. Importantly, the Joint Powers Statute expressly provides that the members of
the Joint Powers Entity will not be liable for the acts of another participating governmental unit

or the entity itself.



This new Joint Powers Statute expressly addresses several of the concerns that have been
raised over the years by various entities regarding the Compact’s inter-governmental agreement
structure under G.L. c. 40, §4A (the “Inter-Governmenta} Agreémenl Statute™). The Compact’s
Governing Board thus determined that a Joint Powers Entity would provide an appropriate
vehicle for the smooth and efficient transfer of its fiscal administration and employees. In
addition, the Governing Board determined that the Compact could reorganize and fully operate
through a Joint Powers Entity to take advantage of the express authorities and liability protection
afforded by the Joint Powers Statute.

Towards thfs end, the Compact reached out to several of its members to begin
consideration of an internal reorganization to operate as a Joint Powers Entity. The Compact’s
counsel consulted with counsel for a majority of the Compact’s members and drafied a JPA. The
JPA is enclosed as Attachment C.

F. The Joint Powers Agreement.

The JPA is very similar to the IGA, with the addition of certain provisions that
specifically address the new authorities set forth in the Joint Powers Statute (e.g., liability of
members, additional powers, public employer status, etc.). The JPA also contains some
additional organizational provisions of a corporate nature (e.g., indemnity and insurance) and
modifies or clarifies certain provisions of the IGA (e.g., quorum requirements, executive
committee membership, etc.). A bulleted summary of the general differences between the IGA
and the JPA is set forth in Attachment D.

G. Timing of Tralnsfer of Operations to Cape Light Compact JPE.

1f all Compact municipal members have executed the JPA by the end of June 2017, the

Compact intends to fully operate as a Joint Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 in order to align with



the start of the next fiscal year.” If not all of the Compact's municipal members have taken up
the JPA by such time, the Compact will transfer its fiscal administration from the County to the
Joint Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 and continue to operate under its current IGA until the
remaining municipal members have executed the JPA or until such time as otherwise determined
by the Compact’s Governing Board.

As discussed in more detail below, the internal reorganization will not change any of the
core operations of the Compact — it intends to continue to operate its power supply aggregation,
consumer advocacy and energy efficiency programs with no interruption in service to the
Compact’s customers. Contracts in the name of the Compact at the time that the Joint Powers
Entity becomes the full operational arm of the Compact (including power supply contracts and

energy efficiency vendor contracts) will be assigned to the Joint Powers Entity.

III. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Department has discretion to issue an advisory ruling pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, §8
and 220 C.M.R. §2.08. The advisory ruling may apply to any person, property or factual
situation of any statute or regulation enforced or administered by the Department. NSTAR
Electric Company and Western Massachusetts Electric Company, D.P.U. 16-108 at 12 (2017);
USGen New England, Inc., D.T.E. 98-07 at 7 (1998); Littleton Electric Light Department, D.P.U.
96-11 at 3 (1996).

In issuing an advisory ruling, the Department will not resolve a specific legal issue, but
rather it will render “an opinion about the legal effect and impact of a statute, rule or regulation

administered by the Department.” D.P.U. 16-108 at 13. The ruling is not binding on the

* The Compact's auditor recommends that, to the extent feasible, any transition of funds occur at the end of the
County’s fiscal year in order for the County and the Compact to better account for the termination and transition.

7



petitioner or the Department, although the Department as a maiter of general practice will not

take action against a party relying in good faith on an advisory ruling. Jd. at 13 and n. 11.

[V. LEGAL PRINCIPLES AND STATUTE IN QUESTION

A municipality or any group of municipalities acting together within the Commonwealth
is authorized to aggregate the electrical load of consumers within its boundaries. G.L. c. 164,
§134(a). A town may initiate the process to aggregate by a majority vote of town meeting or
town council. /d. Two or more towns may, as a group, initiate a process jointly by a majority
vote of cach particular municipality. /d. Under this construct, the initial vote approves initiating
the municipal aggregation process, but it does not approve a particular municipal aggregation
plan. Id.; D.P.U. 14-69 at 30 (the municipal aggregation statute is silent on process a
municipality must follow to approve a particular plan). The municipal aggregation statute
provides for development and Department approval of aggregation plans as follows:

Upon an affirmative vote to initiate said process, a municipality or group of

municipalities establishing load aggregation pursuant to this section shall, in

consultation with the department of energy resources, pursuant to section 6 of

chapter 25A, develop a plan, for review by its citizens, detailing the process and

consequences of aggregation. Any municipal load aggregation plan established

pursuant to this section shall provide for universal access, reliability, and

equitable treatment of all classes of customers and shall meet any requirements

established by law or the department concerning aggregated service. Said plan

shall be filed with the department, for its final review and approval, and shall

include, without limitation, an organizational structure of the program, its

operations, and its funding; rate setting and other costs to participants; the

methods for entering and terminating agreements with other entities; the rights

and responsibilities of program participants; and termination of the program. Prior
to its decision, the department shall conduct a public hearing. ;

G.L.c. 164, §134(a).
In its review of an aggregation plan, the Department determines “whether a municipal

aggregation plan is consistent with the requirements of law relating to the procurement of electric



supply and energy services for aggregated retail customers in competitive markets.” D.P.U. 14-
69 at [7. The Department’s standard of review is specific to those areas of the law relating to
aggregation — the sct of laws within the Department’s general administrative expertise. /d. at 17-
18. It does not conduct a review (o consider whether an aggregation plan and program comply
with all substantive bodies of law. Id.

Under this limited scope of review for an aggregation plan, the Department does not exert
general regulatory authority over municipalities or entities formed under the Inter-Governmental
Agreement Statute. fd. at 12. In its review of the Compact’s Aggregation Plan, the Department
expressly chose not to address claims relating to the Compact’s compliance with various
requirements of the Inter-Governmental Agreement Statute or claims regarding the validity of
the Compact’s contracts. fd. at 25, n. 33 (noting the Department has no jurisdiction to review
such claims).

In addition, the Department has acknowledged that the Compact conducts certain
activities authorized by its IGA that are not solely in respect of the municipal aggregation (e.g.,
joint municipal energy procurement) and that a review of such activities is outside the scope of
the Department’s review under G.L. c. 164, §134(a). /d. at 12. In fact, the Department
specifically requested that the Compact remove from its Aggregation Plan references to the
Compact’s negotiation of electric supply agreements to serve municipal electric loads that were
not part of the Compact’s municipal aggregation program. Jd. at 12, n. 14,

With an approved plan, a municipality or group of municipalities is authorized to, among
other things:

[G]roup retail electricily customers to solicit bids, broker, and contract for electric

power and energy services for such customers. Such municipality or group of

municipalities may enter into agreements for services to facilitate the sale and
purchase of electric energy and other related services. Such service agreements



may be entered into by a single city, town, county, or by a group of cities, towns,
or counties.

fd. Municipalities may continue to contract for such services in accordance with their approved
aggregation plan without seeking additional approval from the Department. City of Lowell,
D.P.U. 12-124 at 52 (November 27, 2013). The Department does not have authority to review
post-implementation matters such as a municipal aggregation’s actual rates or executed clectric
supply agreements as part of its review and approval of an aggregation plan. D.P.U. 14-69 at 14.
It is a well-settled precept of statutory construction that words and phrases shall be
construed according to their plain meaning and that statutes should be interpreted under the
common and approved usage of the language. Sullivan v. Brookline, 435 Mass. 353, 360 (2001);
G.L.c. 4, §6, cl. 3. Section 134 contains no requirement that municipal aggregators must file
revised aggregation plans. G.L c. 164, §134(a). There is no language in Section 134 that,
according to its plain meaning, evinces any legislative intent that municipal aggregators file
revised aggregation plans. /d. The Department acknowledges that the plain language of Section
134 does not address the requirements for filing a revised aggregation plan. D.P.U. 14-69 at 29.
The Department has determined that a municipality must revise its municipaliaggregalion
plan and file such plan for Department approval only when the municipality “seeks to deviate
from its approved plan, or if due to changes in the law, regulations, the competitive supply
market, or other circumstances the approved plan no longer accurately describes the operations
of the municipal aggregation program.” D.P.U. 14-69 at 29; D.P.U. 12-124 at 52 (emphasis
added). The Department has noted that certain potential changes to the Compact’s operations
such as changes to adjust the amount and specific uses of its operational adder may not require
filing a revised plan because the Aggregation Plan still contains “an accurate description of the

organizational structure of the Compact’s funding.” D.P.U. 14-69 at 52.

10



The Compacl interprets the Department’s requirement regarding the filing of revised
plans be in the context of a material deviation in the aggregation operations (e.g., a material
change in matters of universal access, reliability, equitable treatment of all customer classes,
eic.). A transition to a new organizational form, under the facts presented herein, does not rise to

this level of material deviation in aggregation operations.

V. THE COMPACT’S REQUEST AND APPLICATION OF LEGAL PRINCIPLES

‘The Compact secks an opinion from the Department that its internal reorganization from
an inter-governmental organization under the Inter-Governmental Agreement Statute to a Joint
Powers Entity under the Joint Powers Statute does not require the Compact to file a revised
Aggregation Plan for Department review. For the reasons set forth below, the Compact believes
that Section 134 and the Department’s interpretation of its scope of authority to review municipal
aggregation plans under Section 134, support this opinion.

A. Scction 134 Does Not Govern the Organizational Authority of a Municipal
Aggregator.

Section 134 1s silent on the form of organization or entity that a group of municipalities
may usc to operate an aggregation program. G.L. ¢. 164, §134. Although the Department makes
reference to the Compact’s IGA in its approval order for the Aggregation Plan, the Department
did not approve the Compact’s decision to organize under the IGA or approve the IGA itsclf.
D.P.U. 14-69. The Department has made clear that it does not have general regulatory authority
over entities formed under the Inter-Governmental Agreement Statute. D.P.U. 14-69 at 12, n.
16.

Similarly, the Compact believes the Department does not have general regulatory

authority over entities organized under the Joint Powers Statute. /d. The only change the

11



Compact is proposing is to its organizational authority (transitioning from an IGA in accordance
with the Inter-Governmental Agreement Statute to a JPA in accordance with the Joint Powers
Statute — akin to a change in its corporate form). The Compact understands that the Joint Powers
Statute was cnacted as a way to enhance the Inter-Governmental Agreement Statute. Its
transition to a Joint Powers Entity is intended to take advantage of these enhanced organizational
authorities, and not intended (o materially alter its operations as a municipal aggregator. Given
that there will be no change in control or in any of the core operations set forth in the
Aggregation Plan (see discussion in Sections V(B) — (E) below), the Compact submits that its
internal reorganization in accordance with the Joint Powers Statute does not constitute a
deviation from its approved Aggregation Plan and neither Section 134 nor the Department’s
determination in D.P.U. 12-124 requires the Compact to present a revised Aggregation Plan to

the Department.

B. All Municipal Members of the Compact will Join the Cape Light Compact

JPE.

The municipal members of the Compact are currently in the process of taking up the
votes by their respective governing bodies to join the Cape Light Compact JPE. Currently, ten of
the Compact’s 21 municipal members have approved joining the Cape Light Compact JPE and
executing the JPA. To effectuate the reorganization, the Compact will assign or otherwise
transfer its functions to the Cape Light Compact JPE, as discussed in Section V(C), below.

Thus, when all municipal members join the Cape Light Compact JPE, there will be no need to
change any aspect of the Compact’s approved power supply or energy efficiency operations
because there will be no change in the Compact’s service territory and no interruption in service

to customers.



In addition, it is important to note that no member municipality is seeking to initiate the
process of aggregation through this internal reorganization of the Compact, and thus (other than
as may be required by a municipal charter to approve execution of the JPA), no town meeting or
town council votes are required to maintain compliance with Section 134. G.L. c. 164, §134(a);
D.P.U. 14-69 at 29-30. Each municipal member of the Compact already has the requisite
approval and votes from town meeting or town council in accordance with Section 134 to act as
a municipal aggregator. See D.T.E. 00-47; D.P.U. 14-69.

Although Dukes County and the County are parties to the IGA, the counties are not
municipal aggregators, as Section 134 does not authorize counties to aggregate their electric
loads. For this reason, the Compact’s Aggregation Plan does not include Barnstable and Dukes
counties as aggregators and the Department’s approval of the Compact’s Aggregation Plan is not
in regard to the two county members of the Compact.?

C. The Organizational Structure of the Cape Light Compact JPE will be
Substantially Similar to the Compact’s Orpanizational Structure.

The Compact understands that the Joint Powers Statute was intended to augment G.L. c.
40, §4A. As such, the JPA is, in effect, an enhanced IGA. All of the core components of the
IGA remain in the JPA. The organizational structure outlined in Section 2 of the Compact's
Aggregation Plan will not change. The only change to the organizational chart in Section 2 of
the Aggregation Plan is that a new Business Officer employee is required by the Joint Powers

Statute.? JPA, Article IX(H).

? To note, under the JPA, the County and Dukes County may participate as limited members of the Cape Light
Compact JPE, with no voting rights on matters concerning aggregated power supply, energy efficiency plans and
programs or other such matters that are committed by law to municipal aggregators. The two counties may appoint
a representative to attend Cape Light Compact JPE Goveming Board meetings but these representatives are not
Directors of the Governing Board and do not count towards a quorum for meeting or voting purposes

* The Joint Powers Statute also requires that the Treasurer of the Joint Powers Entity #ot be a member of the Cape
Light Compact IPE Governing Board, G.L. c. 40, §4A%.

I3



The JPA provides for voting rights and inclusion of the Cape Light Compact JPE
Governing Board in matters of planning, analysis and participation in programs. JPA, Article
IV, Article V(A). Like under the IGA, the Cape Light Compact JPE Governing Board is made
up of one representative appointed by each of the member municipalities, as well as an alternate
representative that each member may appoint. /d. at Article V(B). And, just as with the
Compact Governing Board, the Cape Light Compact JPE Governing Board will be responsible
for establishing the policies of the Cape Light Compact JPE, except with respect to those powers
reserved to the member municipalities by law or the JPA. Id. at Article V(A). Finally, like the
Compact Governing Board, the Cape Light Compact JPE Governing Board and its officers will
continue to be responsive and responsible to consumers and Boards of Selectmen and Town

Managers/Town Councils. See generally, JPA.

D. The Operations of the Cape Light Compact JPE will be Substantially Similar
to the Compact’s Operations.

The Compact does not intend to changes its general operational structure. The only
change to the operational units described in Section 2 of the Aggregation Plan is that the County
will no longer serve as the Compact’s procurement agent or fiscal agent.® The Cape Light
Compact JPE will either perform these services directly as authorized by the Joint Powers
Statute, or it will contract for such services. JPA, Article IX(M). The Department has made
clear that its scope of review for an aggregation plan under Section 134 does not include a
review of new contracts or service agreements entered into by the aggregation. City of Lowell,

D.P.U. 12-124 at 52.

* In addition, the County will no ionger be the employer of record for Compact staff.

14



All core operational aspects of the Compact described in Section 2 of the Aggregation
Plan will remain unchanged upon reorganization and operation as a Joint Powers Entity. For

cxample:

e The power supply and energy efficiency goals will remain the same and are
incorporated in the JPA. JPA, Article II.

* The Cape Light Compact JPE will operate the power supply program in the same
manner as outlined in the Compact’s Aggregation Plan.

* The Cape Light Compact JPE will administer the statewide three-year energy
efficiency investment program in the same manner as set forth in the Aggregation
Plan.

¢ There will be no change in program funding ~ the Cape Light Compact JPE will be
funded in the same manner as set forth in the Aggregation Plan. Sce JPA, Article
10(B) (describing program funding in the same manner as set forth in the
Aggregation Plan).

Moreover, there will be no change in the substantive components of the aggregation
program. Specifically, there will be no change in the operations set forth in Sections 5-11 of the
Aggregation Plan, which address, respectively: the methods for entering and terminating
agreements with other entities; ratesetting and other costs to participants; the power supply
program’s universal access; equitable treatment of all classes of customers; reporting; reliability;
and rights and responsibilities of program participants. There will also be no change in the
alternate information disclosure strategy. The Department has already determined that the
Compact’s Aggregation Plan meets the substantive requirements of Section 134 and is consistent
with the Department’s rules and regulations regarding information disclosure. D.P.U. 14-69 at

44-49. The internal reorganization will not affect any component of the Aggregation Plan

considered by the Department to reach this conclusion.

15



E. The Cape Light Compact JPE will assume all Contractual Commitments and
Operations of the Compact through Documented Assignments or Transfers.

The Compact is currently in the process of developing a Transition, Asset Transfer and

Succession Plan for its transition to operations under the Cape Light Compact JPE. On or before
the operational transfer date, the Cape Light Compact JPE will execute all documents and
perform all acts necessary to transfer all programs, operational functions, tangible and intangible
assets (including intellectual property), contracts and records of the Compact to the Cape Light
Compact JPE so that the Cape Light Compact JPE is the legal successor to the Compact.
Accordingly, there will be no interruption in service under the Compact’s power supply
contract. In addition, the Compact would not need to modify its energy efficiency plan or budget
through a mid-term modification, as there will be no change in the municipal membership of the
Compact and the Cape Light Compact JPE will assume implementation of the Compact’s 2016 —

2018 Three Year Plan, approved by the Department in D.P.U. 15-166.

V. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, the Compact respectfully requests that the Department
issue an advisory ruling to clarify that the Compact does not need to file a revised Aggregation
Plan if it undergoes an internal reorganization that transfers the Compact’s operations from an
inter-governmental organization under G.L. c. 40, §4A to a Joint Powers Entity under G.L. c. 40,

§4A1/2,

16



Dated: March 31, 2017

17

Respectfully submitted,
THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

By its altorneys,

W

%417, A Cildlp—

Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq,

Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq.

BCK LAW, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, Massachusetts 02452
Telephone: (617) 244-9500

Fax: (802) 419-8283



ATTACHMENT A
INTER-GOVERNMBNTAL AGREEMENT

N o

i\#\\acb\m k=






Cape Light Compact
P.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699 ! Fax:508.362.4136  capelightcompact.org

March 22, 2017

Mary Mclsaac, Chairperson

Barnstable County Retirement Association
750 Attucks Lane

Hyannis, MA 02601

4

On behalf ofith newly formed Cape Light Compact Joint Powers Entity (CLCIPE), | am
petitioning the'Barnstable County Retirement Association for the creation of a new unit in the
Association. The CLCJPE is a public entity formed under Chapter 216 of the Acts of 201 6, the
Municipal Modemization Act. A provision of this Ac, codified as M.G.L. ¢. 40, Section 4A'%
(the “Joint Powers Statute™), allows two or more municipalitics to enter into an apreement to
create a joint powers entity (JPE). The Joint Powers Statute specifically states that a JPE is a
public employer.

BACKGROUND

The organizational predecessor to the CLCIPE is the Cape Light Compact (CLC) which operates
under a administrative service agreement with Barnstable County Regional Government. In
2018, the County and CLC agreed mutually to terminate this agreement. The CLC governing
board has chosen to reorganize as a JPE.

Under the administrative services agreement, Bamstable County provided the administrative
structure for the CLC, the hiring of employees and the provision of employee benefits including
retirement and health insurance.

The current CLC staff members are members of the Bamstable County Retirement Assaciation
through Bamnstable County. The creation of the new unit will ensure the continuation of the
employees’ rights and benefits provided under M.G.L. Chapter 32,

FORMATION OF THE JPE

The first two members who voted to join the CLCJPE are the towns of Brewster and
Provincetown. As of today, nine towns have voted to Join the CLCJPE. For reference, attached
is a copy of the Joint Powers Agreements and an example of the votes taken by a CLCIPE
member Town. It is expected that other members of the CLC will join the CLCJPE as time
progresses.

V/orking Together Toward A Smarter Energy Future

Aquiniab  Barnstable Barnsiabl2 Counly ' Bourne | Brewster | Chatiam | Ch'ma'k * Dannis Dukes Ceunty @ Eastham ! Edga-tcwn  Falmouth
Harwch  Mashpee  Os¢ Bidis ¢ Oreans « Provincetowa Samdaich o Tishury  Tewro  Wallfleet  Waest Tshury  Yarmauta



Mary Mclsaac
Page 2
March 22, 2017

The effective date of the transfer of administrative and personnel functions from the County to
the CLCIPE is July 1, 2017. This petition secks to have membership of the CLCIPE's employees
effective as a separate unit on that date.

The Joint Powers Statute, subsection (f), provides "[t)he entity shall be a public employer. The
board of directors may employ personnel to carry out the purposes of the joint powers
agreement...” The CLCIPE will also seek membership in the Cape Cod Municipal Health Group
(CCNHG). The CCMHG is tentatively scheduled to discuss this subject at their April 12,2017
meeting.

EMPLOYEES
At present, the CLC consists of 15 employees, and one vacant position for a total of 16
employees, with an annual payroll of approximately $1.4M. The employees are currently

members of the retirement system through Barnstable County and would be transferred to the
new unit effective July 1, 2017,

Thank you for your timely consideration of this request. If you would like any additional
information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
"Nl

Margaret T. Downcy

Cape Light Compact Administrator

Enclosures

cc:  Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C.



rC'ape Ligh.t B

Cape Light Compact
P.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699  Fax: 508.362.4136  capelightcompact.org

March 23, 2017

Noreen Mavro-Flanders, Chair
Cape Cod Municipal Health Group
c/o Group Benefits Strategies

11 Midstate Drive

Suite 200

Auburn, MA 01501

”

-

Dear 0- Lmders:

On behalf of the newly formed Cape Light Compact JPE (CLCIPE), | am requesting
consideration for membership in the Cape Cod Municipal Health Group (CCMHG). The
CLCJPE is a public entity formed under Chapter 216 of the Acts of 2016, the Municipal
Modemization Act. A provision of this Act codified at G.L. c. 40, section 4A% (the “Joint
Powers Statute™), allows two or more municipalities to enter into an agreement to create a joint
powers entity (JPE). The Joint Powers Statute specifically states that a JPE is a public employer.

BACKGROUND

The organizational predecessor entity to the CLCIPE is the Cape Light Compact (“CLC") which
operates under a administrative service agreement with Barnstable County Regional
Government. In 2016, Barnstable County and CL.C agreed mutually to terminate the agreement.
The CLC Governing Board has chosen to reorganize as a JPE.

Under the administrative services agreement, Barnstable County provided the administrative
structure for the CLC, the hiring of employees and the provision of employee benefits including
retirement and health insurance. The current CLC staff members are members of the CCMHG
through Bamnstable County. The creation of the new unit will ensure the continuation of the
employees’ rights and benefits provided under M.G.L. Chapter 32.

FORMATION OF THE JPE

The first two members to vote to form the CLCJPE are the towns of Brewster and Provincetown.
As of the date of this letter, nine CLC member towns have voted to join the CLCJPE. Itis
expected that other members of the CLC will join the JPE over the next several months.

Wodlopy Tog thor fownsnd A s aarioi Frivyen i

Agunnah - Barnstable Barnstablz County  Bourne  Brewster Chatham  Clslmark  Dennis  Dukes County  Eastham  Edgartown  Falmoutiv
Harwich  Mashpee  Oak Bluffs  Orleans  Provincetown  Sandwich Tishury  Truro Wallflast  West Tishury  Yarmouth



The effective date of the transfer of administrative and personnel functions from Barnstable
County to the JPE is July 1, 2017. This membership request seeks to have membership of the
CLCIPE's employees effective as a separate unit on that date.

The Joint Powers Statute, subsection (f), provides "[t]he entity shall be a public employer. The
board of directors may employ personnel to carry out the purposes of the Joint Powers
agreement...".

EMPLOYEES

At present, the CLC consists of 15 employees, and one vacant position for a total of 16
employees, with an annual payroll of approximately $1.4M. The employees are currently
members of CCMHG through Barnstable County and would be transferred to the new unit
cffective July 1, 2017.

Thank you for your timely consideration of this request. If you would like any additional
information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely, ~

MargarerT. Downey
Cape Light Compact Administrator



BCK

=a BCK LAW, P.C.

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The firm has atiorneys olso admiled 271 Waveriey Oaks Roap, Suire 203 Facsmne: 802.419.8283
to practice in Disirict of Columbia, Wattham, MassacHuserrs 02452 2 - E-Man: bekboston@bek.com
ldaho, New York and Vermont 617.244 9500 3o Weesite: www.bck.com
March 20,2017 =0E]iiEp
W23 any
VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL "ape Ligh

“Tnact
Melissa Hoffer, Esq. "

Chief, Energy and Environment Bureau
Office of the Attorney General

100 Cambridge Street, 12™ Floor
Boston, MA 02114 -2509

Re:  Notice of Cape Light Compact Internal Reorganization
Dear Melissa:

We are writing to inform you that the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact”) is
undergoing an internal reorganization. As you may recall, the Compact is organized as an inter-
governmental entity in accordance with G.L. c. 40, §4A and its core governing document is an
Inter-Governmental Agreement executed by all 23 of its members (the “IGA”). Recently, the
Compact and Barnstable County, one of the Compact’s members that has served as its fiscal
agent and the employer of the Compact’s staff since its inception, agreed to terminate this
relationship. The Compact’s Governing Board then began to explore other options for the
Compact’s fiscal and administrative services.

The Compact’s Governing Board became aware of a provision in the recently enacted
Act Modermizing Municipal Finance and Government (Chapter 218 of the Acts of 2016) that was
intended to augment the inter-governmental authority set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A by allowing
governmental units to form joint powers entities. This provision is codified at G.L. ¢. 40, §4Al2
(the “Joint Powers Statute”). Through adoption and execution of a joint powers agreement
(“JPA™), the governmental units create a separate “Joint Powers Entity” which is a body politic
and corporate. The Joint Powers Statute authorizes the Joint Powers Entity to, among other
things, sue and be sued, execute contracts, receive and expend funds, borrow money and act as a
public employer. Importantly, the Joint Powers Statute expressly provides that the members of
the Joint Powers Entity will not be liable for the acts of another participating governmental unit
or the entity itself. The Compact’s Governing Board determined that a Joint Powers Entity
would provide an appropriate vehicle for the smooth and efficient transfer of its fiscal
administration and employees. In addition, the Compact’s Governing Board determined that the
Compact could reorganize and fully operate through a Joint Powers Entity to take advantage of
the express authorities and liability protection afforded by the Joint Powers Statute.

VErRMONT OFFICE: MounTamn States OFFICE:
P.O. Box 205 PQO. Box 1527
Woodstock, Vermont 05091 Keichum, Idohe 83340
Telephone: 802.457.92050 Telephone: 208.727.9734
Facsimile: 802.419.8283 Facsimile: 802.419.8283

E-Mail. bekvi@bck.com E-Mail: bekidaho@bck com



Melissa Hoffer, Esq.
March 20, 2017
Page 2

This internal reorganization will not change the general governance structure of the
Compact. The Joint Powers Entity will have a governing board appointed by its members and
the JPA is very similar to the Compact’s IGA, with the addition of certain provisions that capture
the new authorities set forth in the Joint Powers Statute. Moreover, the reorganization will not
change any of the core operations of the Compact — it intends to continue to operate its power
supply aggregation, consumer advocacy and energy efficiency programs with no interruption in
service to the Compact’s customers. Nonetheless, the Compact will file a Request for an
Advisory Opinion from the Department of Pubtlic Utilities to confirm that its internal
reorganization does not require the Compact to revise its approved Aggregation Plan.

Presently, seven of the Compact’s municipal members have voted to join the Joint
Powers Entity. Additional members will be voting this Spring. If all of the Compact’s
municipal members have executed the JPA by the end of June 2017, the Compact intends to fully
operate as a Joint Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 in order to align with the start of the next fiscal
year. If not all of the Compact’s municipal members have taken up the JPA by such time, the
Compact will transfer its fiscal administration from Barnstable County to the Joint Powers Entity
on July 1, 2017 and continue to operate under its current IGA until the remaining municipal
members have executed the JPA or until such time as otherwise determined by the Compact’s
Governing Board.

If you have any questions regarding this planned reorganization, please let us know. We
would be happy to meet with you in person or schedule a call to discuss. Please contact Audrey
Eidelman directly at 617-244-9500 x203 with any questions.

Sincerely,

A, it
ZWM

Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq.
Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq.
Counsel to the Cape Light Compact

cc: Margaret T. Downey, Cape Light Compact Administrator (via first class mail) L—"
Rebecca Tepper, Esq., Deputy Chief, Energy and Environmental Bureau, Office of the
Attorney General (via first class mail)



Agquirnah i

Cape Light

Cape Light Compact
P.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699 | Fax: 508.362.4136 | capelightcompact.org

March 28, 2017

Jack Yunits, Jr.

Bamnstable County Administrator
Superior Courthouse

3195 Main Street

Barnstable, MA 02630

Re:  Termination and Transition Agreement and Administrative Services Agreement with
ape Light Compact

The purpose of this letter is to confirm that the Termination and Transition Agreement between
the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact”) and Barnstable County (the “Transition Agreement”)
will terminate on June 30, 2017. The Compact will not be seeking an extension pursuant to
Section [V(A) of the Transition Agreement. Through this letter, the Compacl is also affirming
termination of the Administrative Services Agreement between the County and the Compact
dated April 10, 2000, effective as of the date of the Transition Agreement.

As you are aware, the Compact is in the process of reorganizing itself as a joint powers entity
pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A'%, the Joint Powers Statute. The Joint Powers Statute was enacted in
November 2016 as part of the Municipal Modemization Act. The Compact is not dissolving,
and at some point, the Compact’s inter-governmental agreement will be terminated. However,
the Compact will continue to exist; it will exist in the form of the JPE which will be assuming all
of the liabilities of the Compact.

The Compact’s members are currently in the process of taking the necessary steps to join the
Cape Light Compact JPE (the “JPE"). As of the date of this letter, ten municipalities have voted
to join the JPE. The Compact hopes that full transition to the JPE as the operational and legal
successor to the Compact will occur in the next several months.

The Compact is aware that certain members of the Barnstable County Assembly of Delegates are
taking the position that the County has some claim to the Compact’s assels (tangible and
intangible) and that an ordinance is under consideration which would, among other things,
attempt to prohibit the Compact from removing its own property from the Bamnstable County
complex on, or before, June 30, 2017. Both you and I have affirmed that the Compact is not in
possession of any assets that have been purchased with County funds. Any funds or in-kind
contributions (i.e. office space) that were historically provided to the Compact were done so

Working Together Toward A Smarter Energy Future

Barnstable ! Barnstable County © Bourne i Brewster © Chatham  Chitmark i Denms  Dukes Counly . Eastham Edgariown
Harwich © Mashpee Oak Bluffs | Orleans  Prowincetown t Sandwich | Tisbury  Trure ' Welifieet  Wesi Tishury  Yarmouth



willingly and knowingly by the County and through required budget appropriation approved by
both the County Commissioners and Assembly of Delegates. When the County requested the
Compact to pay for services starting in fiscal year 2015, the Compact complied with this request.
As you have noted in your correspondence with me, there is no legal authority to “go back” in
time under Massachuselts General Laws and request payment between public entities for
services rendered when no payment was requested at the time of service.

1 would like to work cooperatively with you on presenting any concerns you and the
Commissioners may have regarding transition matters so that they may be properly addressed in
the JPE’s transition plan. In order to facilitate the transition, 1 suggest the Compact and the
County Commissioners enter into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU™) regarding
termination of their relationship. The MOU would offer positive benefits to the County, such as
certainty as to liability for pension and health insurance costs. Also, the Compact will be
engaging its auditor to conduct a close out audit as part of the transition to a JPE and the details
of this audit and the transfer of personnel and other public records could be addressed in the
MOU.

On behalf of the Compact Governing Board and Compact staff, thank you and your siaff for
working with the Compact as we transition 1o a JPE. If you have any questions, or would like to
discuss the details of the MOU, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,”

Margaret T. Downey
Compact Administrator

cc:  Compact Governing Board
County Commissioners
Jeffrey M. Bemnstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C.



Cape Light Compact
P.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699 | Fax: 508.362.4136 | capelightcompact.org

March 20, 2017

Neil Cohen

Office of the Inspector General
John W. McCormack

State Office Building

One Ashburton Place, Room 1311
Boston, MA 02108

Re:  Notice of Cape Light Compact Internal Reorganization

Dear ohen:

I'am writing to inform you that the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact”) is undergoing an
internal reorganization. As you may recall, the Compact is organized as an inter-governmental
entity in accordance with G.L. c. 40, §4A and its core governing document is an Inter-
Governmental Agreement executed by all 23 of its members (the “IGA™). Recently, the
Compact and Barnstable County, one of the Compact’s members that has served as its fiscal
agent and the employer of the Compact’s staff since its inception, agreed to terminate this
relationship. The Compact’s Governing Board then began to explore other options for the
Compact’s fiscal and administrative services.

The Governing Board became aware of a provision in the recently enacted Act Modemizing
Municipal Finance and Government (Chapter 218 of the Acts of 2016) that was intended to
augment the inter-governmental authority set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A by allowing governmental
units to form joint powers entities. This provision is codified at G.L. c. 40, §4A % (the “Joint
Pawers Statute”). Through adoption and execution of a joint powers agrecment (*JPA™), the
govemmental units create a separale “Joint Powers Entity” which is a body politic and corporate.
The Joint Powers Statute authorizes the Joint Powers Entity to, among other things, sue and be
sued, execule contracts, receive and expend funds, borrow money and act as a public employer.
Importantly, the Joint Powers Statute expressly provides that the members of the Joint Powers
Entity will not be liable for the acts of another participating governmental unit or the entity itself.
The Compact’s Governing Board determined that a Joint Powers Entity would provide an
eppropriate vehicle for the smooth and efficient transfer of its fiscal administration and
employees. In addition, the Governing Board determined that the Compact could reorganize and
fully operate through a Joint Powers Entity 1o 1ake advantage of the express authorities and
liabifity protection afforded by the Joint Powers Statute.

Working Together Toward A Smarter Energy Future

Aquinnah - Barnstab'e  Barnstable County © Bourna  Brewster  Chatham  Chlmarc Berns ¢ Dukes County  Easthar  Edgariown  Falmouth
Harwich | Mashpee « Qa<Bulis  Oreans  Provncatown  Sandwich  Tiskary © Trurg  \Walflzer  West Tishury  Yarmouth



Neil Cohen
Page 2
March 20, 2017

This internal reorganization will not change the general povernance structure of the Compact.
The Joint Powers Entity will have a govemning board appointed by its members and the JPA is
very similar to the Compact’s IGA, with the addition of certain provisions that capture the new
authorities set forth in the Joint Powers Stalute. Moreover, the reorganization will not change
any of the core operations of the Compact - it intends to continue 10 operate its power supply
apgregation, consumer advocacy and energy efficiency programs with no inlerruption in service
to the Compact’s customers. Nonetheless, the Compact will file a Request for an Advisory
Opinion from the Department of Public Utilities to confirm that its internal reorganization does
not require the Compact to revise its approved Aggregation Plan.

Presently, nine of the Compact’s municipal members have voted to join the Joint Powers Entity.
Additional members will be voting this Spring. 1f all of the Compact’s municipal members have
executed the JPA by the end of June 2017, the Compact intends to fully operate as a Joint
Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 in order to align with the start of the next fiscal year. If not all of
the Compact's municipal members have 1aken up the JPA by such time, the Compact will
transfer its fiscal administration from Barnstable County to the Joint Powers Entity on July 1,
2017 and conlinue 1o operate under its current IGA until the remaining municipal members have
executed the JPA or until such time as othenwise determined by the Compact's Governing Board.

If you have any questions regarding this planned reorganization, please let me know. I would be
happy to meet with you in person or schedule a call to discuss. | can be reached at 508-375-
6636.

Sincerely,

Margaret T. Downcy

Cape Light Compact Adadinistrator

cc:  Cape Light Compact Goveming Board
Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C.



Cape Light Cape Light Compact
P.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699 | Fax: 508.362.4136 | capelightcompact.org

March 20, 2017

Kathleen Colleary

Municipal Finance Law Bureau
Department of Revenue

100 Cambridge Street

PO Box 9569

Boston, MA 02114-9569

Re:  Notice of Cape Light Compact Internal Reorganization
Dear Ms. Colleary:

I'am writing to inform you that the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact”) is undergoing an
internal reorganization, As you may recall, the Compact is organized as an inter-governmental
entity in accordance with G.L. c. 40, §4A and its core poverning document is an Inter-
Govermnmental Agreement execuled by all 23 of its members (the “IGA™). Recently, the
Compact and Bamstable County, one of the Compact’s members that has served as its fiscal
agent and the employer of the Compact’s staff since its inception, agreed to terminate this
relationship. The Compact’s Governing Board then began to explore other options for the
Compact’s fiscal and administrative services.

The Govemning Board became aware of a provision in the recently enacted Act Modernizing
Municipal Finance and Government (Chapter 218 of the Acls of 2016) that was intended to
augment the inter-governmental authority set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A by allowing governmental
units to form joint powers entities. This provision is codified at G.L. ¢. 40, §4A'% (the “Joint
Powers Statute”). Through adoption and execution of a joint powers agreement (“JPA”), the
governmental units create a separate “Joint Powers Entity” which is a body politic and corporate.
The Joint Powers Statute authorizes the Joint Powers Entity to, among other things, sue and be
sued, execule contracts, receive and expend funds, borrow money and act as a public employer.
Importantly, the Joint Powers Statute expressly provides that the members of the Joint Powers
Entity will not be liable for the acts of another participating governmental unit or the entity itself,
The Compact's Governing Board determined that a Joint Powers Entity would provide an
appropriate vehicle for the smooth and efficient transfer of its fiscal administration and
employees. In addition, the Governing Board determined that the Compact could reorganize and
fully operate through a Joint Powers Entity to take advantage of the express authorities and
liability protection afforded by the Joint Powers Statute.

Working Together Toward A Smarter Energy Future

Agunnzh  Barnsiable Barnsiable Counly | Bourne  Brawster Chatham  Chdmark  Dennis ! Bukes Counly  Eastham  Edgartown | Falmaouth
Harench  Klashpee  Oak Blulls | Orl2ans  Provincetown 1| Sandwich Tisbury  Truro ¢ Wellileet  Wast Tisbury | Yarmouth



Kathleen Colleary
Page 2
March 20, 2017

This internal reorganization will not change the general governance structure of the Compact,
The Joint Powers Entity will have a governing board appointed by its members and the JPA is
very similar to the Compact’s IGA, with the addition of certain provisions that capture the new
authorities set forth in the Joint Powers Statute. Morcover, the reorganization will not change
any of the core operations of the Compact - it intends to continue to operate its power supply
aggregation, consumer advocacy and energy efficiency programs with no interruption in service
to the Compact’s customers. Nonetheless, the Compact will file a Request for an Advisory
Opinion from the Department of Public Utilities to confirm that its internal reorganization does
not require the Compact to revise its approved Aggregation Plan.

Presently, nine of the Compact’s municipal members have voted to join the Joint Powers Entity.
Additional members will be voting this Spring. If all of the Compact’s municipal members have
executed the JPA by the end of June 2017, the Compact intends to fully operate as a Joint
Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 in order to align with the start of the next fiscal year. If not all of
the Compact’s municipal members have taken up the JPA by such time, the Compact will
transfer its fiscal administration from Bamnstable County (o the Joint Powers Entity on July 1,
2017 and continue to operate under its current 1GA until the remaining municipal members have
executed the JPA or until such time as otherwise determined by the Compact’s Governing Board,

If you have any questions regarding this planned reorganization, please let me know. 1 would be
happy to meet with you in person or schedule a call to discuss. [ can be reached at 508-375-
6636.

Sincer

Margaret T. Downey
Cape Light Compact

cc:  Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C.



Aguinrzah

Cape Light &

Cape Light Compact
F.O. Box 427, Barnstable, MA 02630
1.800.797.6699 | Fax: 508.362.4136 ' capelightcompact.org

March 20, 2017

Judith Judson, Commissioner
Department of Energy Resources
100 Cambridge Street

Suite 1020

Boston, MA 02114

Re:  Notice of Cape Light Compact Internal Reorganization

Dear 10oner Judson:

I am writing to inform you that the Cape Light Compact (the *Compact”) is undergoing an
internal reorganization. As you may recall, the Compact is organized as an inter-governmental
entity in accordance with G.L. c. 40, §4A and its core governing document is an Inter-
Governmental Agreement executed by all 23 of its members (the “IGA™). Recently, the
Compact and Barnstable County, one of the Compact’s members that has served as its fiscal
agent and the employer of the Compact’s staff since its inception, agreed to terminate this
relationship. The Compact’s Governing Board then began to explore other options for the
Compact’s fiscal and administrative services.

The Governing Board became aware of a provision in the recently enacted Act Modemizing
Municipal Finance and Government (Chapter 218 of the Acts of 2016) that was intended to
augment the inter-governmental authority set forth in G.L. c. 40, §4A by allowing goveramental
units to form joint powers entities. This provision is codified at G.L. c. 40, §4A% (the “Joint
Powers Statute™). Through adoption and execution of a joint powers agreement (“JPA”), the
governmental units create a separate “Joint Powers Entity” which is a body politic and corporate.
The Joint Powers Statute authorizes the Joint Powers Entity to, among other things, sue and be
sued, execute contracts, receive and expend funds, borrow money and act asa public employer.
Importantly, the Joint Powers Statute expressly provides that the members of the Joint Powers
Entity will not be liable for the acts of another participating governmentat unit or the entity itself.
The Compact’s Governing Board determined that a Joint Powers Entity would provide an
appropriate vehicle for the smooth and efficient transfer of its fiscal administration and
employees. In addition, the Governing Board determined that the Compact could reorganize and
fully operate through a Joint Powers Entity to take advantage of the express authorities and
liability proteclion afforded by the Joint Powers Statute.

Working Together Toward A Smarter Energy Future

Bainsable | Barnstable County  Bourme - Brawstar  Chatham  Chdmark 1 Danmis  Dukas County - Eastham Edgaricwn
Harach | Mashpes  Cak Bluffs  Orleans  Prowncetown  Sandwich @ Tisbury © Trurd Walfleet + West Tishury * Yasmouth



Judith Judson
Page 2
March 20, 2017

This internal reorganization will not change the general governance structure of the Compact.
The Joint Powers Entity will have a governing board appointed by its members and the JPA is
very similar to the Compact’s IGA, with the addition of certain provisions that capture the new
authorities set forth in the Joint Powers Statute. Moreover, the reorganization will not change
any of the core operations of the Compact - it intends to continue to operate its power supply
aggregation, consumer advocacy and energy efficiency programs with no interruption in service
to the Compact’s customers. Nonetheless, the Compact will file a Request for an Advisory
Opinion from the Department of Public Utilities to confirm that its internal reorganization does
not require the Compact to revise its approved Apggregation Plan.

Presently, nine of the Compact’s municipal members have voted 1o join the Joint Povers Entity.
Additional members will be voting this Spring. f all of the Compact’s municipal members have
executed the JPA by the end of June 2017, the Compact intends 1o fully operate as a Joint
Powers Entity on July 1, 2017 in order to align with the start of the next fiscal year. 1f not all of
the Compacl’s municipal members have taken up the JPA by such time, the Compact will
transfer its fiscal administration from Bamnstable Caunty to the Joint Pawers Entity on July 1,
2017 and continue to operate under its current IGA until the remaining municipal members have
execuled the JPA or until such time as otherwise determined by the Compact’s Goveming Board.

If you have any questions regarding this planned reorganization, please let me know. 1 would be
happy to meet with you in person or schedule a call to discuss. 1 can be reached at 508-375-
6636.

Sincerely,

-

Masgaret T. Downey
Cape Light Compact Administrator

cc:  Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Jeffrey M. Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, P.C.



S —
Aquinnah
Barnustable

Barnstable
County

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark,

Dennis

Dukes
County

FEastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orleans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

Agenda Action Request
: Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Meeting Date: 4/12 /17

k Q0|

VOTE ON TRANSITION, ASSET TRANSFER AND SUCCESSION PLAN

Proposed Motion(s)

1) Imove that the Governing Board vote to approve the draft Transition, Asset Transfer
and Succession Plan.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be
necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

Additional Information

Article XVII(C) of the Joint Powers Agreement provides as follows: Unless such other date is
established by the Governing Board, when the majority of the municipal members of the
Compact join the Cape Light Compact JPE, the Compact and the Cape Light Compact JPE wil,
develop an asset transfer and succession plan and, in consultation with DPU (and other
governmental authorities if necessary or convenient), will establish an operational transfer date
{no later than January 31, 2018, unless otherwise directed by DPU). Once such date is
established, the Cape Light Compact JPE will notify the members of the Compact of the deadline
Jor joining the Cape Light Compact JPE in order to participate in its aggregation plan. On or
before the operational transfer date, the Cape Light Compact JPE will execute all documents and
perform all acts necessary to transfer all programs, operational functions, tangible and intangible
assets (including intellectual property), contracts and records of the Compact to the Cape Light
Compact JPE so that the Cape Light Compuct JPE is the legal successor to the Compuact.

Record of Governing Board Action
Motion by: Second by:

# Aye | #Nay | # Abstain Disposition




Draft 4 /12/17

TRANSITION, ASSET TRANSFER
AND SUCCESSION PLAN!

I. Effective Date & Definitions

This Transition, Asset Transfer and Succession Plan (“Plan™) is effective as of April 12,
2017, provided it is adopted by the Cape Light Compact’s Governing Board at its April 12,2017
meeting. This Plan is a work in progress and will be periodically updated as the Compact
transitions into a new organizational form, a joint powers entity (“JPE”). This Plan may be
amended informally through Govemning Board votes and/or through replacement with an updated
version of this Plan.

The current operational transfer date set forth in in the Joint Powers Agreement (“JPA™)
is January 31, 2018. As a majority of municipal members have voted to join the JPE as of the
date of this Plan, the boards of both organizations will vote to move the operational transfer date
to July 1, 2017. The Compact will notify its members that have not joined the JPE of the
deadline to join.

This Plan will terminate on the operational transfer date.

Terms not defined in this Plan have the meanings set forth in the Compact’s Amended
and Restated Sixth Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”)

2. Purpose

The purpose of this Plan is to set forth a framework for the Compact’s reorganization as a
JPE and for the orderly transition of the Compact’s administrative, personnel and operational
functions.

The Compact will not be terminated. The Compact will maintain continuity of existence.
The Compact is reorganizing itself as a joint powers entity (formerly Dukes County and
Barnstable County and the towns within them acting together as the Compact through an
intergovernmental agreement). The Compact is reconstituting its governing instrument
(formerly an intergovemmental agreement; now a joint powers agreement). Within ninety days
of full transfer of the Compact’s operations (or at such other time as may be directed by any
governmental authorities), the Compact Governing Board will hold its final meeting and will
vote that the IGA is superseded and replaced by the JPA. On or before the operational transfer
date (July 1, 2017,), all of the Compact’s funds and assets will be controlled by the JPE. At such
time, the Compact’s operations will be conducted in the JPE organizational form and all aspects
of governance will be in accordance with the JPA.

3. Current Membership
As of April 12, 2017, the members of the JPE are listed in Exhibit A to this Plan.

4, Transition Team

! See Article XVIII of Joint Powers Agreement and [GA termination provision appended to this Plan.



The Compact Administrator shall be in charge of transition matters, subject to the
direction of the Compact’s Governing Board. The Compact Administrator shall coordinate
transition matters with the JPE Board, officers and any person(s) designated by the JPE.

In her absence, Compact staff may be assigned specific transition responsibilities.

The Compact’s Governing Board will vote to establish a JPE Transition Subcommittee
which shall attend all JPE board meetings. The JPE Transition Subcommittee will assist the
Compact Administrator with transition matters. The JPE Transition Subcommittee will not have
the right to vote on JPE matters, but may participate in the meetings and make recommendations
to the Compact’s Administrator. The JPE Transition Subcommittee will be subject to the
requirements of the Open Meeting Law.

5. Transition Funding, Budget, Financial Matters & Procedures
The Compact will provide funding to the JPE for the following items:

Accounting software

Rent for new office space

Funds for potential renovation of new office space

Funds for legal expenses

Funds to hire a treasurer

Funds for [T assistance associated with the move and reorganization
Treasurer’s bond should it become required

Budget

6. Organizational Meeting of JPE

The first organizational meeting of the JPE will be held on April 12, 2017. The following
items will be included in the agenda: (i) election of officers; (ii) appointment of JPE
Administrator; (iii) vote to authorize JPEA to apply for EIN, open bank accounts and execute all
other documents required to conduct business; (iv) authorize JPE Administrator to submit
application for membership in the BCRA (retirement) & CCMHG (health); (v) authorize the JPE
Administrator to execute lease for office space; (vi) vote to designate BCK as JPE counsel; (vii)
vote to accept this Plan; (viii) votes related to Public Records Law and Open Meeting Law
requirements; (ix) vote on treasurer’s bond; (xi} vote on operational transfer date; and (xii) vote
on Effective Date of JPE.

TR o e o

The Compact JPE Transition Subcommittee and the Compact Administrator shall attend
and participate in the meeting,.

7. JPE Board Meetings/Scheduling Matters

The JPE Goveming Board shall generally meet before, or after the Compact Governing
Board meeting, unless the JPE Governing Board shall call a special meeting.

8. Communication Channels, Information Sharing, Reporting

The Compact Administrator shall coordinate communications and information sharing
between the two boards. The Compact Administrator shall make regular reports regarding
transition matters to the Compact Governing Board.

During the transition period, the Compact will have a separate webpage for JPE matters.

2



9. Regulatory and Administrative Filings

The Compact Administrator, in consultation with counsel, will oversee and coordinate all
necessary regulatory and administrative filings, including, but not limited to, a DPU Request for
Advisory Opinion, Open Meeting Law filings, and Public Records Law filings.

10. Transfer of Employees

All Compact staff will transfer from the Barnstable County payroll to the JPE payroll on
July 1, 2017. The Compact Administrator will take all required and necessary steps to transfer
employec retirement funds, health insurance, other employee benefits (i.e. Employec Assistance
Programs, Deferred Compensation Plans).

il Contracts

The Compact will take all necessary steps to tenminate the Transition Agreement with the
County. The Compact Administrator will coordinate all closeout/reconciliation matters with the
County, including pension liabilities and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB). The JPE
will enter into a new lease of office space. The Compact Administrator will prepare a list of
Compact contracts that will need to be assigned to the JPE and will take all necessary steps to
assign such contracts.

12, Transfer of Assets

The Compact will execute all documents necessary to vest full control and ownership of
Compact assets and property (including intellectual property) in the JPE.

13.  Successor Liability

The JPE will be the organizational and operational successor to the Compact. The JPE
will be liable for all liabilities of the Compact, including those incurred prior to the Effective
Date of the JIPE. Members of the JPE will not be liable for the acts and omissions of the JPE as
set forth in the JPA.

14.  Implementation of Plan

The Compact Administrator is authorized, empowered and directed to do any and all acts
and things, and to make, execute, deliver, file and record any and all instruments, papers and
documents which shall be or become necessary, proper or convenient on behalf of the Compact
to carry out or put into effect any of the provisions of this Plan.



EXHIBIT A
List of Members

[List who voted to join and returned signature pages]

NOTE: MISSING SIGNATURE PAGES FROM THE TOWNS OF: Sandwich, Oak
Bluffs, Aquinnah

Town of Brewster
Town of Chilmark
Town of Dennis

Town of Eastham
Town of Mashpee
Town of Provincetown
Town of Truro

Town of West Tisbury



APPENDIX
JPA PROVISIONS RE TRANSFER OF COMPACT’S FUNCTIONS

ARTICLE XVIII: THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT JPE AS SUCCESSOR TO THE COMPACT;
TRANSFER OF COMPACT'S ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL
FUNCTIONS
Al The Cape Light Compact JPE's Status as Successor Entity to the Compact.

It is the intent of the Members that the Cape Light Compact JPE to serve as the successor entity to the
Compact.

In order to provide for an orderly transition, the Cape Light Compact JPE and the Compact will coordinate
transfer and succession plans in accordance with this Article XVIIL

Upon transfer of the Compact’s operations as set forth in Article XVIII(C) (Transfer of Operations) below,
and in accordance with applicable transfer and succession plans, the Cape Light Compact JPE shall assume all
benefits, obligations and liabilities of the Compact,

B. Transfer of Administrative and Financial Functions.

Upon the Effective Date, the Cape Light Compact JPE will serve as the administrative and fiscal arm of the
Compact. As soon as practicable, Compact staff will become employees of the Cape Light Compact JPE. At such
time, the Cape Light Compact JPE shall assume responsibility for any and all loss, injury, damage, liability, claim,
demand, tort or worker’s compensation incidents that occur on or afier the date personnel are transferred to the Cape
Light Compact JPE. The Cape Light Compact JPE will also perform certain financial services for the Compact as sel
forth in a written agreement between the Compact and the Cape Light Compact JPE. The Cape Light Compact JPE
may elect to defegate performance of such functions to service providers as set forth in Article IX(M) (Service
Providers).

C. Transfer of Operations.

Unless such other date is established by the Governing Board, when the majority of the
municipal members of the Compact join the Cape Light Compact JPE, the Compact and the Cape Light Compact
JPE will develop an asset transfer and succession plan and, in consultation with DPU (and other governmental
authorities if necessary or convenient), will establish an operational transfer date (no later than January 31, 2018,
unless otherwise directed by DPU). Once such date is established, the Cape Light Compact JPE will notify the
members of the Compact of the deadline for joining the Cape Light Compact JPE in order to participate in its
aggregation plan. On or before the operational transfer date, the Cape Light Compact JPE will execute all documents
and perform all acts necessary to transfer all programs, operational functions, tangible and intangible assets
(including intellectual property), contracts and records of the Compact to the Cape Light Compact JPE so that the
Cape Light Compact JPE is the legal successor to the Compact.

D. Meetings and Board Membership During Transition Period.

During the transition period, meetings of the Cape Light Compact JPE will occur
immediately before or after scheduled meetings of the Compact. In order to provide for an orderly transition or for
any other reason that a Municipal Member deems appropriate, a Municipal Member may appoint the same person to
serve on the Cape Light Compact JPE’s and Compact’s Governing Boards.



EXCERPT FROM 6" AMENDED AND RESTATED IGA

ARTICLE XIV: TERM AND WITHDRAWAL

Each member shall take such action as required under G.L. c. 40, §4A to make this
Agreement effective. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date that the last of the
members signs below, and shall continue in effect for a term not to exceed twenty-five years. At
the conclusion of the term, taking into account any changed circumstances, the members shall in
good faith negotiate a replacement intergovernmental agreement.

Any governmental member may voluntarily withdraw from the Compact at the end of
each quarter of the fiscal year (i.e. June 30th, September 30th, December 3 1st, March 31st), upon
thirty days prior written notice. Withdrawal of such member shall not affect any obligations
entered into prior to the date of withdrawal which are binding by their terms on such member,
including, without limitation, contracts directly entered into by such member and financial
contributions to the Compact made or agreed to be made by such member.

If the purposes of the Compact are attained, or for any other reason duly voted upon by
the Governing Board, the Compact may dissolve. Upon dissolution, an accounting of the assets
owned by the Compact shall be performed and sold. The proceeds of the sale shall be distributed
equitably to the then remaining members of the Compact according to their percent contribution.






—
Aquinnah
Barnstable

Barnstable
County

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark,

Dennis

Dukes
County

Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orfeans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

Agenda Action Request
Cape Light Compact
Meeting Date: 4/12/17

o

FY17 Cape Light Compact Transition to JPE Budget Request

REQUESTED BY: Maggie Downey

Proposed Motion(s)

1) I'move the Board vote to appropriate a transition budget of $240,775.00 for the
Cape Light Compact to reorganize as a Joint Powers Entity

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may
be necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

The proposed FY17 transition budget request is attached, and is to cover costs associated
with the Compact transitioning to a joint powers entity, seeking new office space, and a
setting-up a new financial software package.

Record of Board Action

Motion by: Second by: # Aye | # Nay | # Abstain Disposition




ey : _ = =

Limisr nwp)|

L 00°SLL'OPT S . 4 ~193png SugusadQ 1D WeIqng

_ 00°s21 $ | :m.mum.w.l.j SIZuLE ISIIA]

00051 $ | p86S | aaEApa

00°000°L $| €865 | asuvnsu| yyeay

_ 000006 $ 9T08S suoeAoudy 3uippng

| 1 00000'ST §| 8655 | 2IBMIJOS [RIdUBMIY

_ _ 000052 S| THPS | (eAnd pue funo)) juay

_ _ - 00000'ST  $ _m#_.- T jenjdenu0)
b 00000y § | BETS | woddng 11

_ 00°00006 § | S€IS | " eda

! . | 00000°PT  $ | 00IS | soLIT[BS
ENIR X . ] | 7ot a0 | TR

198pNY Td[ OF UONISUEI] L1 1694 (605t 19edmo;) 18] 206,y |

R R boo e | ! ¢ |

F

”A._%u«\.__c.:@_?_uﬁﬂo JO0LS) 9L TEL'0Z6 § | ! LENEIY J0 51 3dusyeg) pung as1asay KjdUng 13mog Wb iz adn _a:..._e..:
e = : :

0/L'CE _..O 1L LIFIEIE J0 52 dunpug pung asuasay Sddng samoy sandwo) 1dy u._au_
1



'A'genda Action Request Cape Light- llll!_
Cape Light Compact Compact—3 1)
Meeting Date: 4/12 /17

- —
g Revoke FY17 Cape Light Compact Operating Budget —
Agutgng Supplemental Budget Request
(Barnstable
REQUESTED BY: Maggie Downey Ooj
Barnstable
Count .
4 Proposed Motion(s)
Bourne .
Brewster 1) Imove the Board vote to revoke the March 3, 2017 supplemental budget request of
Chatham $75,000.00 for the Cape Light Compact’s FY17 Operating Budget.
Chifinark. The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
_ appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may
Denns be necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.
Dukes
County
Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs | The Compact’s auditor recommended that the Compact maintain a separate fund and
Orle budget for the Joint Powers Entity Transition period of April through june 30, 2017, and not
reans co-mingle these funds with the Compact’s Operating FY17 budget.
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
(el Record of Board Action
West Tisbury Motion by: Second by: #Aye | #Nay | #Abstain | Disposition

i
Yarmouth -







Agenda Action Request Cape Lig
Cape Light Compact Compac
Meeting Date: 4/12/17 Qoo
T
O 0
. . - - - .
FY17 Cape Light Compact Transition to JPE Budget Request
Aquinnah
Barnstable REQUESTED BY: Maggie Downey
Barnstable
County .
Proposed Motion(s)
Bourne | -
Brewster 1) I move the Board vote to move the operational transfer date of the Cape Light
Chhatham Compact to the Joint Powers Entity from January 31, 2018 to July 1, 2017,
Chilinark, The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
' appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may
Dennis be necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.
Dukes
County
Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs This proposed change will allow for the smooth reorganization of the Compact to a Joint
orfi Powers Entity and negate the need to maintain two organizational structures and financial
eans records.
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
(e Record of Board Action
West Tisbury Motion by: Second by: # Aye | #Nay | # Abstain | Disposition
Yarmouth |







